
 

 1

 
Memorandum 

 
Joint City of BloomingtonMonroe County Deer Task Force 

Thursday, 15 December 2011, 5:30 PM 
McCloskey Room (#135), City Hall, 401 N. Morton St. 

 
 
PRESENT:   Task Force Members: Keith Clay, Stefano Fiorini, Bob Foyut, Sarah Hayes, Iris 
Kiesling, Laurie Ringquist, Dave Rollo and Susannah Smith Staff: Stacy Jane Rhoads 
Public: Rick Van Kooten and Dave Parkhurst. 
 
I.   WELCOME.  Those present introduced themselves.  
 
II.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 17 November 2011 (with clarifying annotations suggested by Griffin)  
 Authorize Chair to approve Minutes from September & October after  
             opportunity for Task Force members to review.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
•  Rick Van Kooten of Elm Heights said that he participated in the Outreach meeting at Templeton 
over the summer and wants to communicated his continued concern with the deer problem 
within City limits. He has three deer living in his backyard and has tried deterrents and 
repellents of all types.  None have worked in the long term.  He said that he is very aware that 
funding is likely issue.  He said that the Task Force should be aware that there are many 
neighbors in problem areas who would be willing to pay for deer removal; however, they need 
permission from the City to proceed. He said that his preference is for trapping and relocating.  
He also said that trapping and euthanasia should be considered. 
  
• Van Kooten pointed out that there is a geographic inequity with the deer problem.  People in 
the southeast portion of the City are disproportionately affected.  This area did not experience 
deer overabundance until Renwick was developed.   
 
• Van Kooten said that he realizes that none of the management approaches are perfect.   
However, he encourages the Task Force not to dismiss a management strategy just based on cost 
– the Task Force should realize that there are many  individuals and groups of individuals who 
would be willing to help pay for removal.  
 
• Ringquist clarified that the group is discussing sharpshooting for deer tucked away in urban 
neighborhoods; however, the group has ruled out “trap and euthanize” as an option because deer 
suffer in the trapping phase.  Ringquist also explained that the group is considering 
sharpshooting for “pocket deer;” this is separate from the discussion of an Urban Deer Zone for 
which the Task Force would require sufficient acreage if hunting within City limits.  
 
• Van Kooten thanked Ringquist for the clarification and said that he, personally, would be 
willing to contribute to, or pay the entire cost of, sharpshootin. He said that he and his wife love 



 

 2

the deer, but the deer are decimating their gardens.  
 
• Parkhurst said that he thinks the City should pay for deer removal, not individual property 
owners.  
 
• Van Kooten said that his preference is for the City to pay for removal, but if cost is an issue, he 
would be willing to pay for removal.  He just wants permission and guidance from the City.  He 
said he wants the City to give property owners recourse to remove the deer legally.  

 
IV.   REPORTS FROM TASK FORCE MEMBERS  
• Clay relayed that Terre Haute has spent $21,000 on their continuing attempt to control crows.  
They are using lasers to disorient the birds. He said that he mentions Terre Haute to emphasize 
that “it is hard to control nature” and that deer are here to stay.  The issue is how to manage deer 
in the City.  
 
•  Rollo relayed that he has received a lot of positive feedback about the Deer Task Force 
appearance on Noon Edition. Rollo, Hayes and Moore participated in the interview. Josh Griffin of 
the IDNR sent the group and e‐mail after the meeting clarifying a few points:  
 

1.) IDNR will provide technical assistance, but will not run a managed hunt for individuals or 
communities unless such hunt occurs on IDNR property.  
 
2.) When it comes to lead fragmentation, the issue is where the deer was shot.  Chad Stewart has 
conducted empirical research on lead fragmentation and found that shots to the head presented 
the least fragmentation while shots to the shoulders yielded the most fragmentation.  See 
http://www.in.gov/dnr/fishwild/5466.htm#lead  

 
3.) Someone called in asking about wolves and in Dave’s follow up he mentioned that natural 
predators might move in but reintroducing them is not a solution.  It might help to clarify that 
there is no reason to believe that wolves may move into Indiana.  

 
•  Fiorini requested that the broadcast be linked on the Deer Task Force website.  
 
V. GRIFFY DISCUSSION WITH THE USDA 
Rollo reviewed that the Task Force agreed that deer reduction at Griffy is an unfortunate 
necessity. At the November meeting, the Task Force voted that its primary preference is for 
lethal deer management at Griffy is sharpshooting with a secondary preference for managed 
hunt with bows. The next step is to find out how such an effort would work and what it would 
cost.   Staff from the City’s Parks and Recreation Department will be meeting with Dr. Joe Caudell 
of the USDA on 20 January 2012 to discuss possible sharpshooting at Griffy.  As Clay will be on 
sabbatical, Dr. Angie Shelton will attend. After the Griffy discussion, Rollo and Rhoads will 
discuss the possibility of sharpshooting in neighborhoods. 1 
 
                                                 
1 At present, the Indiana Code prohibits the use of silencers and of jacklights when hunting.  The IDNR legal team has 
determined that, under the current Code, sharpshooting would be subject to these prohibitions.  However, the Code 
provides an exception for IDNR and federal wildlife staff.  The USDA's Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service 
(AIPHS) provides sharpshooting services (at a cost less than professional shooters) and would be permitted to use 
silencers and jacklighting under the State code. Sharpshooting at night lessens the trauma for deer (and neighbors) 
and is more effective as it does not educate other deer in the area on what is happening. 



 

 3

VI. MEASUREMENT/MONITORING RANKING 
Rollo reviewed that Clay, Moore and Stefano constitute the “Measurement/Monitoring” working 
group.  At the November meeting, the group presented the full Task Force with a list of 
recommendations. At that time, Moore made clear that that all the recommendations are proxies 
and at least a couple of measures must be employed to get a more complete picture of the deer 
population.  He advised that the entire Task Force should review the list and rank priorities at its 
December Meeting.  The strategies would be implemented both before and after any 
management intervention. Moore provided the group with his prioritized rankings.   
 
The Task Force adopted those rankings as follows:    
 

1. Set up an on‐line or phone site where citizens can call in with complaints and use 
the location and number of complaints as a metric for deer problems. It could be 
subject to organized efforts to inflate the actual numbers.  

2.  Enlist citizen observations to estimate deer density. For example, at 8AM on Dec. 1 
ask people to look and record the number of deer they see in their back yard. 
Possibly repeat several times.  

3. Conduct censuses of deer droppings as a measure of deer density, as is commonly 
done in many studies. This could be a volunteer, citizen science effort.  

4. Enlist IU courses to conduct research and/or surveys to estimate densities. For 
example, courses in Biology, SPEA. 

5. Use city or postal workers who walk (or drive) regular routes on a daily or weekly 
basis and ask them to make note of the number of deer sightings they make. One 
potential issue is that they don’t have the time or opportunity to take on extra 
tasks. 

6. Monitoring vegetation for browse damage, especially in city parks that would be 
accessible without permission. One potential problem is quantifying deer damage 
separate from other stressors (e.g. drought). Also, plant species will vary from site 
to site so it would be compare among sites. One idea was to look at arbor vitae 
shrubs, which are common and deer seem to like to eat them. They show browse 
damage for years. Talk to Burney Fischer and Sarah Mincey (SPEA) and Lee Huss 
(COB) to get their feedback. Burney and his students have existing tree plots 
identified and mapped so it might be possible to take advantage of their 
groundwork to measure deer damage. 

7. Use remote cameras to estimate deer densities. For example, the city has cameras 
along the B‐line trail, as do many businesses. (Hayes said that this strategy should 
be understood not to use Google Earth as the street level photos are only taken 
once every three years.) 

8. Obtain data on road kill and traffic accidents from the police, the animal shelter, 
from insurance companies, etc. But the data may be inconsistent or lacking. But it 
also provides a retrospective estimate of deer densities (e.g. how many car 
collisions in 1970, 1980, 2010, etc.). 

 
• Hayes suggested that the list be tightened up before presented as formal recommendations.  
 
• Rhoads asked Ringquist if Animal Care and Control’s current complaint‐tracking system would 
be appropriate to satisfy the complaint‐tracking system of Recommendation #1.  Ringquist said 
that point of ACC’s complaint system is to dispatch officers when need to.  It is not set up to 



 

 4

capture information and to report information in the way the Task Force would need it.  
Ringquist said that it might be possible to develop a real simple on‐line form for deer complaints. 
 
• Rhoads pointed out that someone will have to track this feedback and analyze it.  
 
• Rollo said that the Task Force does not need to figure that out now.  He is thinking that an 
intern at the Environmental Commission could track and compile complaints.  The assumption 
should not be that Animal Care and Control should do everything related to deer.  
 
• Clay said that the above list was brain‐storming, not recommendations.  
 
• Fiorini said the complaint log would not satisfy the need to quantify deer.  Measuring the 
perception of deer impact is separate from measuring actual deer impact.  
 
• Clay pointed out that, aside from the complaint‐tracking mechanism,  the other measures are 
quantitative and are not based on perception.  It is important to have objective measures.  
Presumably, the objective and subjective measures will correlate. 
 
• Ringquist asked if repeating the survey would help.  Hayes pointed out that the survey would 
elicit the most emotional responses. Furthermore, to be reliable, the survey would have to be 
administered to the same respondents.  
 
• Rhoads added that the initial survey was not scientific and similarly, the reproduction of the 
survey would not be scientific; however, it would be a good way to measure responses to the 
same questions year‐on‐year.     
 
• Fiorni advised that the group needs to track how perception and the geography of the issue 
changes.  Based on logging complaints, the City would have a sense of where the problems are 
occurring. The City could then present the regions experiencing a deer problem with a suite of 
options.   Instead of issuing the survey every two years or so, a complaint‐based system is a more 
responsive way to keep track of where the problem is occurring.  
 
• Ringquist added that survey has pros and cons. Since the survey would not go to the same 
people, it may suffer from methodology problems.  However, since the tool has already been 
developed, it might be instructive to ask the same questions over time.  
 
► The Task Force voted to adopt the prioritized list as submitted by Moore with the change to 
cut the Google Earth street‐level analysis as indicated in #7 “Remote Cameras” above.  Rollo 
expressed his thanks to Moore for providing the proposed ranking.  
 
VII. EDUCATION  
• Rhoads relayed that at the last meeting, Hayes and Foyut presented a brief outline of possible 
outreach ideas but advised that they could not really develop a communication plan until the 
Task Force settles on its recommendations. Developing a plan hinges on what messages need to 
be communicated, who will do the work and how will it be funded.  At this point, Hayes relayed 
that it is still premature to discuss a communication plan. 
 



 

 5

• Rollo said that the group should wait to address a media plan only after it has reached a 
decision on recommendations.  
 
• Kiesling asked if a private company might be interested in underwriting media outreach.  
 
• Rollo said that he is not sure that the Task Force needs to figure out how to fund a media 
outreach program.  
 
• Fiorini asked if some of the companies who engage in sharpshooting do any outreach? 
Hayes responded that she doubts that USDA has a media person devoted just to outreach re: 
sharpshooting.  
 
• Rhoads said that it might be worth calling communities who have engaged in sharpshooting to 
ask how they handled and any advice.  
 
VIII. HEAT MAPS  
• Rhoads distributed heat maps documenting survey responses to preferred management 
strategies.  Because the survey presented hundreds of response combinations, Fiorini suggested 
that the responses be clustered into the following classes: 1) Non‐intrusive (public education, 
deer‐resistant plants, fencing and repellents); 2) Intrusive, but not lethal (contraception, trap 
and relocate and sterilization); and 3) Lethal (trap and euthanize; hunting and sharpshooting).   
Laura Haley of City GIS assigned each response a point value from 0 (no response) to 2 (strongly 
opposed) to 10 (strongly support).  
 
• Clay asked how geographic points were determined.  Rhoads responded that survey 
respondents were asked for address approximation – cross street or block number.  Because the 
survey is public record, the Task Force did not ask for pinpoint addresses.  
 
• Clay said that the maps indicate that there is a strong inclination for people in certain regions to 
respond to the survey.  
 
• Rhoads reminded the group that the survey did make clear that that the question about 
management options is to assess resident sentiment, not to be a referendum on which strategies 
the Task Force will recommend.  
 
IX.  TENTATIVE TIMELINE 
 
• Rollo said that he has come up with a tentative timeline where Rhoads will provide the group 
with a draft by the end of February. He aims for final approval of the report by the end of March.  
Hayes said that the last two weeks of March are the busiest time of year for her.   Clay will be in 
Bloomington in March, but otherwise will be in Europe on sabbatical for the rest of 2012.  
 
• Clay asked to whom the report is directed.  Rollo responded: Parks, City Council, County 
Commissioners and IDNR as an advisory document.  



 

 6

X.  CITY/COUNTY WORKING GROUP 
• Rollo reminded the group that at the November meeting, the City/County Working Group 
discussed whether sharpshooting in neighborhoods would be an appropriate strategy to address 
deer in urban areas that are not suitable for hunting.  Rollo relayed that he thinks sharpshooting 
should require the agreement by a certain threshold number of people in an affected area.  He 
said that his main concern is not ornamental plants, but food production.  
 
• Granbois asked if the individuals/neighborhoods would be negotiating with the USDA or if local 
government would do that.  
 
• Rhoads responded that the contracts are between property owners and the USDA.  However, 
some communities require that landowners wanting to engage in sharpshooting first apply with 
local government.  The Working Group has been discussing requiring applicants to meet some 
sort of City threshold before they would be eligible to hire the USDA.  As the IDNR would have to 
issue a special purpose permit, any prospective sharpshooting property would have to meet a 
two‐part test: 1) State requirements and 2) Local requirements.  
 
• Ringquist said that since this would be a pilot, she likes the idea of an application to the City. 
Because of the newness of such a program and because of safety concerns, the City should know 
that sharpshooting is happening and agrees that it can happen.  

 
• Hayes said that she feels strongly that there needs to be some City oversight over any hunting 
or sharpshooting program.  
 
• Rhoads said that many communities place administration of hunting programs with law 
enforcement.  
 
• Ringquist relayed that BPD has very strict requirements for police officers to discharge a 
firearm.  They are very reluctant to kill an injured deer within the City limits.  It is tough to get 
BPD to discharge firearm within the City limits.  

 
• Rhoads reviewed a sharpshooting effort may be a complement to the Working Group’s 
recommendation of allowing hunting on 5 contiguous acres.   Ringquist suggested that the 
County could be designated an urban deer zone and then the City exact further control by placing 
specific requirements on the City limits to allow the discharge of a projectile on at least five 
contiguous acres along with other requirements such proficiency test.  
 
• Rollo asked if the five‐acre contiguity requirement makes sense.  Smith replied that it does, but 
that it would be difficult to enforce.  
 
• Clay said that five acres is a pretty high threshold; many properties would be involved.  
Ringquist replied that one of the strengths of the UDZ is to encourage more people to take deer 
where it is safe.  So, it may be the case that the five‐acre threshold is high, but maybe that is okay.  
We want to encourage more people to take deer in the County.  Such a City refinement would 
accomplish this rule.  
 



 

 7

• Van Kooten said the five‐acre requirement is a IDNR requirement for a UDZ.  (Update: IDNR 
says that there is not an acreage restriction on a UDZ.) 
 
• Fiorini suggested that permission be granted to put a tree stand in a certain spot and then to 
get buy‐in from surrounding landowners.  He added that it would make sense to have some sort 
of setback from the property boundaries to mitigate the chance of a deer running off the 
sanctioned five acres after it is shot.  
 
• Smith responded that once a deer is hit, it can travel within an 80‐foot radius. She added that 
even those who consent to hunting on their property, may not be ready for the reality of 
witnessing the death of a deer.  
 
• Clay asked if the County is designated a UDZ, why do need sharpshooting? 
 
• Ringquist responded that there may be areas of the City that are not suitable for hunting.  
That’s where sharpshooting would come in.  
 
• Hayes said she is concerned that she is concerned with deer going through windows and people 
witnessing the hunt.  
 
• Rhoads added that a number of communities who allow urban hunting, prohibit it on weekends, 
on holidays and certain hours where more people are likely to see it.  
  
• Clay asked how many bow hunters are in Monroe County. Smith replied that there are about 
100 hunters in the County, very few of whom would want to hunt in someone’s backyard.  For 
many hunters, it is a family activity, where parents teach children. For the most part, families are 
going to go to the country or the woods to hunt.  
 
• Smith clarified that the hunter education required for hunters born after 1980, does not include 
a proficiency test.  It is more of a general orientation.  
 
• Rollo and Granbois said that the group needs to have a better understanding on how “five 
contiguous acres” is defined.  It should not be linear or weirdly gerrymandered.   Rhoads said 
that she will ask IDNR and contact other communities.  
 
• Before approaching the police department about administering any sort of sharpshooting or 
hunting program, the group agreed that it is important to fully research and develop a proposal 
for the police department to review. Let’s approach them with a coherent proposal, not just an 
idea.  
 
• Rollo said that the group is not ready to vote on a remedy for urban areas yet.  
 
• Rhoads suggested that the City/County Working group meet before the next meeting to work 
through the issues and present a refined proposal at the next regular Task Force meeting.  



 

 8

XI. NEXT MEETING 
Rhoads will send around a survey to set up the next meetings.   
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
The Task Force meeting adjourned at 6:55pm. 

 
 
 


